
 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, December 6, 2017 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 21, 2017 Meeting 
 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 6108 East County Road J  
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
6108 East County Road J in the Town of Turtle 

4. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 6110 East County Road J and adjacent property 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 
6110 East County Road J and part of the adjacent property to the east in the Town of Turtle 

5. Acquisition of Utility Easements by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
Review and consideration of a request by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation to 
acquire utility easements over private property it has purchased for the I-39/I-90 
Reconstruction Project  

6. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Frank Fuerte in the Community 
Development Department at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

 
Notice Posted:  December 1, 2017 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

Wednesday, November 21, 2017 at 7:00 PM 
The Forum 

Beloit City Hall 
100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:02pm. Commissioners Haynes, 
Weeden, Faragher, Ruster, and Finnegan were present.  Commissioners Tinder and 
Johnson and City Councilor Leavy were absent. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 8, 2017 Meeting 
Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Weeden seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – Northwest Corner of Inman Parkway and Prairie 
Avenue 
Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  Commissioner Weeden asked Mr. Dean Holton (in audience) a 
representative for Casey’s Convenience Store about proximity restrictions regarding new 
locations for the franchise.  Dean Holton, 12425 Meadow Drive, Winnebago, IL, indicated 
that Casey’s has strategic placements for store locations to avoid having multiple stores too 
close to each other. 
 
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the motion, Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

4.  Sign Easement Agreement – City of Beloit (Beloit Public Library), Hendricks Commercial 
Properties, and American Builders & Contractors Supply Company 

 Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

 
Nick Dimassis, Beloit Public Library Director, 219 Milwaukee Rd, Beloit, thanked Ms. 
Christensen for her contribution on this project and discussed the locations of the signs in 
detail. 

 
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the motion, Commissioner Finnegan seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed, voice vote. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 
 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
Ms. Christensen mentioned the approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Welder’s Supply 
Company and discussed some of the safety concerns that City Council Leavy brought up 
regarding the inspection and safety of the tank.  Staff will provide information to verify that 
annual inspections will be performed by the Fire Department.  Ms. Christensen also 
acknowledged the approval of Wisconsin Power and Light’s Underground Electric 
Easement for 810 Pleasant St.  Furthermore, the Steering Committee meeting for the 
Comprehensive Plan is scheduled for the 29th of November, 2017.  This meeting will be 
held at the City of Beloit’s Engineering Building. 
 

9. Adjournment 
Commissioner Haynes moved to adjourn the meeting, Ruster second the motion.  Meeting 
adjourned at 7:25pm. 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Frank Fuerte 



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-20, 6108 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 3 
 

File Number: CSM-2017-20 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman and Co., 
Inc. 

Owner: Jeremy & Chelsea Delong 
 

Location: 6108 East County Road J 

Existing Zoning: A-E, Exclusive 
Agricultural District 

Existing Land Use: Agricultural, 
Residential 

Total CSM Area: 9.2 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman and Co., Inc., on behalf of Jeremy & Chelsea Delong, has submitted an Application for the Review of a 
Minor Subdivision and a two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 6108 East County Road J in the 
Town of Turtle. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the Plan Commission may approve, 
conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City of Beloit’s extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of this CSM is to subdivide the subject property into two separate lots, one of which will change its 
zoning from A-E, Exclusive Agricultural District, to R-R, Rural Residential District.   

 Proposed Lot 1 will include 223.23 feet of frontage on East County Rd J, a 30 foot wide cross access easement, 
and will be approximately 1.1 acres in area. Proposed Lot 1 will include an existing single–family dwelling, and its 
zoning will change from A-E to R-R.  

 Proposed Lot 2 will include 480.82 feet of frontage on East County Rd J and will be approximately 8.1 acres in 
area. The zoning for Lot 2 will remain A-E.  

 The boundary dividing these two proposed lots will be the centerline of the existing creek which runs through the 
parent parcel.  

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any objections. 
 The application and proposed CSM are attached for your review. 

 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The subject property is outside of the Future Land Use Map area and therefore does not have a recommended land use. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at 6108 East County Road J in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by March 1, 2018. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution 
  



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-20, 6108 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 
  

Location & Zoning Map 

CSM-2017-20 6108 E County Rd J 



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-20, 6108 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

  



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-20, 6108 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 

 
 



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-20, 6108 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6108 EAST COUNTY ROAD J 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City 

of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of 

the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within 

the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 

6108 East County Road J in the Town of Turtle, containing 9.2 acres, more or less, is located within 

the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-

lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

PART OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1861603, 

RECORDED IN VOLUME 33 ON PAGES 30-34, BEING PART OF THE SW ¼ 

OF THE NE ¼ AND SE ¼ OF THE NW ¼  OF SECTION 2, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF 

THE 4TH P.M., TURTLE TOWNSHIP, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 

property located at 6108 East County Road J in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following 

condition: 

 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by March 1, 2018. 

 

Adopted this 6th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

  _ 

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director  



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-21, 6110 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 

 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2017 
 

Agenda Item: 4 
 

File Number: CSM-2017-21 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman and Co., 
Inc. 

Owner: Kristin Farwell 
 

Location: 6110 East County Road J 
and Part of the Adjacent Property to 
the East 

Existing Zoning: A-E, Exclusive 
Agricultural District 

Existing Land Use: Agricultural, 
Residential 

Total CSM Area: 17.7 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman and Co., Inc., on behalf of Kristin Farwell, has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor 
Subdivision and a two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 6110 East County Road J and part of the 
adjacent property to the east in the in the Town of Turtle. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City of Beloit’s 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of this CSM is to subdivide the subject property into two separate lots, one of which will change its 
zoning from A-E, Exclusive Agricultural District, to R-R, Rural Residential District.   

 Proposed Lot 1 will include 101.11 feet of frontage on East County Rd J and will be approximately 2.6 acres in 
area. Proposed lot 1 will include an existing single–family dwelling, and its zoning will change from A-E to R-R.  

 Proposed Lot 2 will include 101.11 feet of frontage on East County Rd J with a 40 foot wide strip of land dedicated 
to the public, and will be approximately 15.1 acres in area. The zoning for Lot 2 will remain A-E.  

 Proposed Lot 2 will contain portions of land from 6110 East County Rd J and the adjacent property to the east; 
the portion of land from the property adjacent to 6110 East County Rd J will be a 101.11 foot by 509.28 foot area 
which is intended to provide Lot 2 with 100 foot of frontage, as required by the Town of Turtle.  

 Part of the boundary dividing these two proposed lots will be the centerline of the existing creek which runs 
through the 6110 E County Road J property. 

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM. Alliant Energy has submitted a request to the 
applicant for the removal of existing trees for the placement of new utility poles on the future right-of-way.  

 The application and proposed CSM are attached for your review. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The subject properties are outside of the Future Land Use Map area and therefore do not have recommended land uses. 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 
the property located at 6110 East County Road J and part of the adjacent property to the east in the in the Town of Turtle, 
subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by March 1, 2018. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, Application, and Resolution 
  



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-21, 6110 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 

Location & Zoning Map 

6110 E County Rd J and Part of the adjacent lot to the East CSM-2017-21 



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-21, 6110 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

  



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-21, 6110 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

 
 



December 6, Staff Report, CSM-2017-21, 6110 E County Rd, 2 Lot CSM (TOT)   

RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

6110 EAST COUNTY ROAD J AND PART OF THE ADJACENT PROPERTY TO THE 

EAST 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City 

of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan Commission of 

the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within 

the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 

6110 East County Road J and part of the adjacent property to the east in the Town of Turtle, 

containing 17.7 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of 

Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached two-

lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

PART OF LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1861603, 

RECORDED IN VOLUME 33 ON PAGES 30-34, AND UNPLATTED LANDS 

BEING PART OF THE SE ¼ OF THE NE ¼ AND SW ¼ OF THE NE ¼  OF 

SECTION 2, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., TURTLE TOWNSHIP, ROCK 

COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 

property located at 6110 East County Road J and part of the adjacent property to the east in the Town 

of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 

 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by March 1, 2018. 

 

Adopted this 6th day of December, 2017. 

 

 

  _ 

 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen, 

Community Development Director  



REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: December 6, 2017 Agenda Item: 5 File Number: RPB-2017-09

Request: Conveyance to Wis. DOT Owner: Private Owners (3) Location: 1630 Apex Dr., 2426 Field
Crest Rd, 3001 Chatsworth Dr.

Request Overview/Background Information:
As part of the Interstate Highway 39/90 Reconstruction Project, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) is
acquiring additional land in order to widen the DOT right of way. The City of Beloit owns utilities within utility easements
that will be impacted by the construction. The areas impacted are shown on the attached Transportation Project Plats.
This request involves the conveyance of easement rights, with and without relocation of existing utilities.

The sale of land for roadway purposes is required to be referred to and reviewed by the Plan Commission in accordance
with Section 62.23(5) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Key Issues:
 The DOT has acquired land from private parties in which the City of Beloit has utility easements. The DOT is

seeking to acquire our easements using Conveyance of Rights in Land and a Quit Claim Deed. Some of the
utilities in the easements will be relocated and some will be allowed to remain in place.

 The Conveyance of Rights in Land documents (one for sewer and one for water) allow DOT to build over the top
of the City’s sewer and water utilities that are currently in a utility easement over the property located at 1630
Apex Drive and to leave the utilities in place in the new right-of-way. If the DOT were to require the utilities to
move in the future, it would be at their cost. See the Plats labeled “Area 1 Water” and “Area 1 Sewer.”

 The Quit Claim Deed gives up the City’s utility easement rights completely and relates to an existing sewer main
over the properties located at 2426 Field Crest Road (east side of I-90) and 3001 Chatsworth Drive (west side of
I-90). The deed relates to the areas in which an existing sanitary sewer will be relocated from the new DOT right-
of-way. DOT is paying for the relocation now. Any future relocation of our utility in the current right of way would
be the City’s cost. See the Plat labeled “Area 2 Sewer.”

 The sewer relocation is being paid for by DOT, aside from any system improvements added to the project.
 Agreements for the utility relocations will be coming to the City Council for possible action on December 18, 2017.

Consistency with Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5 – to create and sustain high quality infrastructure and

connectivity.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Conveyance of Rights in Land
documents and Quit Claim Deed relating to existing City utilities within easements over property being acquired as
interstate highway right-of-way by the Wisconsin DOT.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Area 1 Sewer Plat, Area 1 Water Plat, Area 2 Sewer Plat, Conveyance of Rights in Land (Area 1 Sewer),
Conveyance of Rights in Land (Area 1 Water), and Quit Claim Deed (Area 2 Sewer)



Area 1 Sewer
(Easement Conveyed – Becomes ROW)

Sewer Main to Remain



Area 1 Water
(Easement Conveyed – Becomes ROW)

Water Main to Remain



Area 2 Sewer
(Easement Conveyed – Becomes ROW)

Sewer Main to be Relocated










